ll()CKHILL Planning Commission Minutes

SOUTH CAROLINA November 9, 2021

A public hearing of the Planning Commission was held on Tuesday, November 9, 2021,
at 6 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 155 Johnston Street, Rock Hill SC.

MEMBERS PRESENT Duane Christopher, Shelly Goodner, Justin Smith, Nathan
Mallard, Keith Martens

MEMBERS ABSENT Randy Graham, Gladys Robinson

STAFF PRESENT Dennis Fields, Shana Marshburn, Eric Hawkins, Amy Jo
Denton, Janice E Miller

In the absence of Chair Randy Graham, Vice-Chair Duane Christopher presided over the
meeting. He informed attendees that cases M-2021-50 and M-2021-51 had been deferred
until the Commission’s December 7" public hearing.

1. Approval of minutes of the October 5, 2021, meeting.

Commissioner Justin Smith made a motion to approve the minutes from the October
5, 2021, meeting. Commissioner Keith Martens seconded, and the motion passed
unanimously by a vote of 5-0 (Graham and Robinson absent).

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

2. Hold public hearing and consider a recommendation to City Council on petition
M-2021-23 by CH Acquisitions LLC (Mark Carpenter) to rezone approximately
31.5 acres at the intersection of Laurel Creek Drive and Twin Lakes Road from
Residential Development District | (RD-l) in York County to Master Planned
Residential (MP-R). Tax parcel 635-07-01-069.

Dennis Fields, Planner Ill, presented the staff report.

Commissioner Nathan Mallard asked if the plan would come back to the Commission
in the future. Mr. Fields stated it would for preliminary plat approval.

Vice-Chair Christopher asked if the buffer yard screening requirements would be in
writing. Mr. Fields replied that these were already included in the Terms & Conditions
documents.

Vice-Chair Christopher observed that if there was a zero lot line and a fence was
required to be 18” off the property line, would the fence have to be 18” from the wall
of the adjacent property. Mr. Fields stated fence location would be allowed as part of
the HOA covenants and restrictions documents, adding that no structures would be
allowed to be attached to a neighbor’s house.

Vice-Chair Christopher observed nothing could be attached to a neighbor’s house. Mr.
Fields stated this was correct.

The applicant, Mark Carpenter, CH Acquisitions, LLC, 6412 Bannington Road,
Charlotte, provided a brief background on the project, noting they had included
additional buffering for adjacent properties. He noted the original plan was to clear out
and improve the existing stormwater detention pond, but due to the number of trees



Planning Commission November 9, 2021

that had grown in the pond, it was decided to place two new ponds on the site that
would create additional buffer areas. He added that all the homes would be
constructed of brick and would be considered a high-quality community in keeping
with the Laurel Creek development.

Commissioner Smith asked if Mr. Carpenter had been involved in the Augusta Place
development. Mr. Carpenter stated he had not.

Commissioner Smith referred to the brick privacy wall along Twin Lakes Road and
asked if there would be similar improvements. Mr. Ray Hold, also of CH Acquisitions,
stated easements and topography along Twin Lakes Road in front of the property
would not allow for the same type of privacy wall.

Mr. Ronnie Abernathy, 309 Quinby Way, president of the Augusta Place Phase | HOA,
asked that construction traffic access the new development by way of Twin Lakes
Road instead of off Laurel Creek Drive, citing the significant disruption experienced by
Phase | residents during the construction of Augusta Place Phase Il. He asked if the
new development would be part of the overall Laurel Creek HOA, if it would have its
own smaller HOA like Augusta Place Phase |, Augusta Place Phase Il, and Blakely,
and who would construct and maintain the walking trail to amenities.

Commissioner Smith asked Mr. Abernathy if he had attended the neighborhood
meetings. Mr. Abernathy stated he had not been able to attend the first one and that
the second one had been scheduled the same night as the August Place Phase | HOA
meeting. He added he was not opposed but that he did have concerns over impacts.

Vice-Chair Christopher asked the particular types of impacts. Mr. Abernathy stated his
primary concern was the amount of construction equipment coming through the
neighborhood. Mr. Fields informed the Commission that Twin Lakes Road is a major
collector roadway and highly traveled and having construction vehicles using it was
seen as dangerous. He added that Twin Lakes Road is a SCDOT maintained road
and they would not likely approve a temporary construction entrance off Twin Lakes
since Laurel Creek Road is a better location. He noted that the construction entrance
off Laurel Creek Drive would eventually become the main entrance location. He added
that this project would be part of the larger Laurel Creek HOA and would have its own
smaller HOA, noting this HOA would be responsible for maintaining amenities within
the project area as well as contribute to maintenance of the overall Laurel Creek
community amenities.

Mr. Bryant Barnes, 621 Bellanova Court, spoke on his concern of seeing garages as
his property was directly adjacent to the new development. He stated the buffer
suggested did not appear to be enough and that any trees planted would take a long
time to grow. Mr. Fields responded that lots 9 to 14, directly adjacent to Mr. Barnes
property, were required to have a buffer of a certain height and width with increased
landscaping in order to mitigate any negative impact. Mr. Barnes asked that the
Commission defer their vote until the buffer could be shown more completely.

Mr. Walter Byrd, 514 Chalmers Row, president of the Laurel Creek HOA, stated the
HOA was in support of the request.

Mr. Carpenter reiterated that the development would have its own HOA organization,
the walking trails would be maintained in the same manner as all the other trails in the
area, and that the buffer area behind lots 9 to 14 was approximately 90°, adding the
trees along the property line would stay in place.

2|Page



Planning Commission November 9, 2021

Commissioner Mallard commented that there appeared to be a dip at the cul-de-sac
and asked if a retaining wall would be constructed. Mr. Holt stated a retaining wall was
likely, adding that indigenous vegetation would remain as well to assist with the buffer
requirements.

Vice-Chair Christopher asked how they would be able to address Mr. Barnes’ concern
over the buffer. Mr. Carpenter stated the elevations of both properties was currently
equal, but the new development would have to be graded so that in the end Mr.
Barnes’ property would be higher in elevation. He added the buffer would be between
95" and 100’ wide, but that they would provide additional landscaping.

Commissioner Smith observed that until this was shown on the plans, Mr. Barnes was
the most affected property owner. Mr. Holt stated that he could state definitively as to
the exact size and configuration of the buffer as this still needed to be engineered, but
that with the grading, this issue may be eliminated.

The Commissioners had a discussion on the buffer area and how this could be best
addressed to alleviate Mr. Barnes’ concerns. Mr. Fields suggested additional
language to make it clear that the additional screening would be directly adjacent to
the alley and on top of a wall should a retaining wall be necessary.

Commissioner Smith made a motion to recommend to City Council approval of the
Master Planned Residential (MP-R) zoning as presented by staff, with the condition
that the Terms & Conditions document be amended to include additional language
related to the screening behind lots 9-14 on the site plan. Commissioner Mallard
seconded, and the motion carried unanimously by a vote of 5-0 (Graham and
Robinson absent).

3. Hold public hearing and consider a recommendation to City Council on petition
M-2021-50 by Dreamkey Partners (Sammy Jackson) to rezone from Wilhurst
Village Master Planned Residential (MP-R) to Wilhurst Master Planned
Residential (MP-R) located at 513 & 542 Rauch Street. Tax parcels 598-19-01-023
& -025.

This item was deferred by the applicant to the December 7 public hearing.

4. Hold public hearing and consider a recommendation to City Council on petition
M-2021-51 by Nelson Property Group to rezone approximately 1.56 acres at 1670
& 1678 W Main Street, one unaddressed parcel, and adjacent right-of-way from
Residential Development District Il (RD-ll) in York County and General
Commercial (GC) to Neighborhood Commercial (NC). The unaddressed parcel
is proposed to be annexed into the City of Rock Hill. Tax parcels 595-00-00-066,
595-02-02-015 & -016.

This item was deferred by the applicant to the December 7 public hearing.

5. Hold public hearing and consider a recommendation to City Council on petition
M-2021-52 by Affordable Auto Repair (Steven Gaskins) to rezone approximately
0.7 acres at 114 Wood Street and adjacent right-of-way from Limited
Commercial (LC) to Industry General (IG). Tax parcels 626-04-01-001 & -002.

Shana Marshburn, Planner Il, presented the staff report.

Commissioner Smith asked if staff would support the special exception request to the
Zoning Board of Appeals. Ms. Marshburn stated they probably would, depending upon
what the required site plan looked like when submitted. She added it would also

3|Page



Planning Commission November 9, 2021

depend upon any public comments received but that she did not see any reason for
staff not to support the request.

The applicant, Steven Gaskins, 2919 Starnes Drive, stated he had been in the auto
repair business for 28 years and was trying to offer affordable towing services as well.

Mr. Mike Fanning, 7825 Camp Welfare Road, Great Falls, spoke in support of the
request, noting that offering wrecker service was a logical extension of the existing
use.

Commissioner Mallard made the motion to recommend to City Council approval of the
Industry General (IG) zoning as presented by staff. Commissioner Smith seconded,
and the motion carried unanimously by a vote of 5-0 (Graham and Robinson absent).

6. Hold public hearing and consider a recommendation to City Council on petition
M-2021-53 by Clinton College to rezone approximately 3.48 acres at 1018 & 1052
Y2 Crawford Road; 224, 226, 230, 232, 234, 236 & 238 Brice Street; and adjacent
right-of-way from Single-Family Residential-4 (SF-4) to Office and Institutional
(Ol). Tax parcels 600-14-01-035 & -038, and 600-15-01-025 to -031.

Shana Marshburn, Planner Il, presented the staff report.

Commissioner Smith asked if the parking lot expansion would require curb and gutter.
Ms. Marshburn stated it would, adding that all additional parking would be required to
meet the standards outlined in the City’s regulations.

Commissioner Martens asked for confirmation that this action would make all of
Clinton College zoned Office and Institutional. Ms. Marshburn stated this was correct.

Commissioner Smith asked if the college owned any other properties adjacent outside
of this request. Ms. Marshburn stated staff tried to make sure that all properties owned
by the college were included but that the applicant could best answer.

Dr. Lester McCorn, 4622 Noel Court, President, Clinton College, stated the college’s
desire to maximize its current space and footprint for development.

Commissioner Smith asked if the college owned other properties in the area. Dr.
McCorn stated it did own several properties across Heckle Boulevard, adding that part
of the master plan for the college was to include more residential housing along with
the construction of what they were currently calling the Beacon Center and a sports
complex.

Vice-Chair Christopher observed the current building configuration presented
connected Brice Street with Heckle Boulevard through parking areas. Dr. McCorn
stated this was correct.

Mr. Mike Fanning, 7825 Camp Welfare Road, Great Falls, spoke in support of the
project, noting specifically that the south side of Rock Hill was currently in a time of
growth and there was a great deal of energy for this project.

Vice-Chair Christopher commented that the request was positive and that it would
bring the zoning where it needed to be.

Commissioner Martens made the motion to recommend to City Council approval of
Office and Institutional (Ol) zoning as presented by staff. Commissioner Shelly
Goodner seconded, and the motion carried unanimously by a vote of 5-0 (Graham
and Robinson absent).

4|Page



Planning Commission November 9, 2021

7. Hold public hearing and consider a recommendation to City Council on petition
M-2021-54 by Tinsley Properties LLC to rezone approximately 0.9 acres at 951
Cel-River Road and adjacent right-of-way from Business Development District
I (BD-ll) in York County to Community Commercial (CC). The subject property
is proposed to be annexed into the City of Rock Hill. Tax parcel 662-00-00-066.

Dennis Fields, Planner Ill, presented the staff report.

Commissioner Smith asked the status of the two properties to the south of this one.
Mr. Fields stated these were owned by York County as part of a road construction
project and would potentially be sold to new or adjacent property owners. He noted
that the properties would not be of a size suitable for standalone development.

Commissioner Mallard presented the motion to recommend to City Council approval
of Community Commercial (CC) zoning as presented by staff. Commissioner Smith
seconded, and the motion carried unanimously by a vote of 5-0 (Graham and
Robinson absent).

NEW BUSINESS

8. Consideration of arequest by McCraney Property Company for a Major Site Plan
and Preliminary Plat approval for an industrial building located on Fire Tower
Road. (Plan #20210279)

Dennis Fields, Planner Ill, presented the staff report.

Commissioner Smith asked the size of the West Marine building, adding he just
wanted to know for scale of the proposed building. Planning & Zoning Manager, Eric
Hawkins, stated it was approximately 470,000 square feet.

Vice-Chair Christopher asked if wetland mitigation efforts would be put into place. Mr.
Fields stated they would, that some of the wetlands were relocated to another area.
He added there were other review comments along this vein that would need to be
addressed.

Vice-Chair Christopher asked if these efforts had been taken care of already. The
Applicant, Anthoney Parker with McCraney, stated they were currently working on
these.

Commissioner Smith asked if this would be a spec building. Mr. Parker replied that it
was.

Vice-Chair Christopher asked if the building could house multiple users. Mr. Parker
replied it could.

Commissioner Smith made the motion to approve the Major Site Plan and Preliminary
Plat as presented, subject to staff comments. Commissioner Goodner seconded, and
the motion carried unanimously by a vote of 5-0 (Graham and Robinson absent).

9. Consideration of a recommendation to City Council to amend the City’s 2030
Comprehensive Plan to add a Resiliency element.

Amy Jo Denton, Senior Planner, presented the staff report.

Vice-Chair Christopher asked if this element would help the City handle any type of
disaster. Ms. Denton replied that it would put plans in place to ensure communication
between organizations.

5|Page



Planning Commission November 9, 2021

Commissioner Mallard asked if this was tying preparedness into the comp plan. Ms.
Denton stated it was.

Commissioner Mallard commented on the 2014 flood in Columbia, SC, asking if this
had any bearing on why the act was developed. Ms. Denton stated the General
Assembly adopted this act was result of the impact of the 2018 hurricane season.

Commissioner Mallard presented the motion to recommend to City Council the
amendments to the City’s 2030 Comprehensive Plan with respect to the Resiliency
element as presented by staff. Commissioner Goodner seconded, and the motion
carried unanimously by a vote of 5-0 (Graham and Robinson absent).

10.Other Business.
a. Adopt 2022 Calendar.

After discussion by the Commissioners, the calendar was adopted with the following
date changes:

e November 8 raindate changed to November 10 to not coincide with election
day
e July 4 meeting moved to July 12 with July 14 as the raindate

Commissioner Smith made a motion to adopt the calendar as submitted with the
changes noted. Commissioner Martens seconded, and the motion carried
unanimously by a vote of 5-0 (Graham and Robinson absent).

b. Holiday dinner.

After discussion by the Commissioners on having an in-person dinner event, it was
decided that staff would research restaurants and send out a poll as to best dates for
everyone.

c. Speaker address requirements.

Commissioner Smith asked why addresses were required for the minutes. Mr. Fields
stated he would find out the reasoning for this.

d. Moratorium.

Vice-Chair Christopher asked for more information on the moratorium voted on by City
Council at the previous night's meeting. Mr. Fields provided information on the
reasoning behind the decision as well as the process going forward.

e. Mrs. Janice Miller leaving.

Mr. Hawkins informed the Commission that Mrs. Miller would be moving to another
department and that this was her last meeting with the Commission.

11. Adjourn.
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:52 p.m.

6|Page



	Commissioner Justin Smith made a motion to approve the minutes from the October 5, 2021, meeting. Commissioner Keith Martens seconded, and the motion passed unanimously by a vote of 5-0 (Graham and Robinson absent).
	PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS
	2. Hold public hearing and consider a recommendation to City Council on petition M-2021-23 by CH Acquisitions LLC (Mark Carpenter) to rezone approximately 31.5 acres at the intersection of Laurel Creek Drive and Twin Lakes Road from Residential Develo...
	Dennis Fields, Planner III, presented the staff report.
	Commissioner Nathan Mallard asked if the plan would come back to the Commission in the future. Mr. Fields stated it would for preliminary plat approval.
	Vice-Chair Christopher asked if the buffer yard screening requirements would be in writing. Mr. Fields replied that these were already included in the Terms & Conditions documents.
	Vice-Chair Christopher observed that if there was a zero lot line and a fence was required to be 18” off the property line, would the fence have to be 18” from the wall of the adjacent property. Mr. Fields stated fence location would be allowed as par...
	Vice-Chair Christopher observed nothing could be attached to a neighbor’s house. Mr. Fields stated this was correct.
	The applicant, Mark Carpenter, CH Acquisitions, LLC, 6412 Bannington Road, Charlotte, provided a brief background on the project, noting they had included additional buffering for adjacent properties. He noted the original plan was to clear out and im...
	Commissioner Smith asked if Mr. Carpenter had been involved in the Augusta Place development. Mr. Carpenter stated he had not.
	Commissioner Smith referred to the brick privacy wall along Twin Lakes Road and asked if there would be similar improvements. Mr. Ray Hold, also of CH Acquisitions, stated easements and topography along Twin Lakes Road in front of the property would n...
	Mr. Ronnie Abernathy, 309 Quinby Way, president of the Augusta Place Phase I HOA, asked that construction traffic access the new development by way of Twin Lakes Road instead of off Laurel Creek Drive, citing the significant disruption experienced by ...
	Commissioner Smith asked Mr. Abernathy if he had attended the neighborhood meetings. Mr. Abernathy stated he had not been able to attend the first one and that the second one had been scheduled the same night as the August Place Phase I HOA meeting. H...
	Vice-Chair Christopher asked the particular types of impacts. Mr. Abernathy stated his primary concern was the amount of construction equipment coming through the neighborhood. Mr. Fields informed the Commission that Twin Lakes Road is a major collect...
	Mr. Bryant Barnes, 621 Bellanova Court, spoke on his concern of seeing garages as his property was directly adjacent to the new development. He stated the buffer suggested did not appear to be enough and that any trees planted would take a long time t...
	Mr. Walter Byrd, 514 Chalmers Row, president of the Laurel Creek HOA, stated the HOA was in support of the request.
	Mr. Carpenter reiterated that the development would have its own HOA organization, the walking trails would be maintained in the same manner as all the other trails in the area, and that the buffer area behind lots 9 to 14 was approximately 90’, addin...
	Commissioner Mallard commented that there appeared to be a dip at the cul-de-sac and asked if a retaining wall would be constructed. Mr. Holt stated a retaining wall was likely, adding that indigenous vegetation would remain as well to assist with the...
	Vice-Chair Christopher asked how they would be able to address Mr. Barnes’ concern over the buffer. Mr. Carpenter stated the elevations of both properties was currently equal, but the new development would have to be graded so that in the end Mr. Barn...
	Commissioner Smith observed that until this was shown on the plans, Mr. Barnes was the most affected property owner. Mr. Holt stated that he could state definitively as to the exact size and configuration of the buffer as this still needed to be engin...
	The Commissioners had a discussion on the buffer area and how this could be best addressed to alleviate Mr. Barnes’ concerns. Mr. Fields suggested additional language to make it clear that the additional screening would be directly adjacent to the all...
	Commissioner Smith made a motion to recommend to City Council approval of the Master Planned Residential (MP-R) zoning as presented by staff, with the condition that the Terms & Conditions document be amended to include additional language related to ...
	3. Hold public hearing and consider a recommendation to City Council on petition M-2021-50 by Dreamkey Partners (Sammy Jackson) to rezone from Wilhurst Village Master Planned Residential (MP-R) to Wilhurst Master Planned Residential (MP-R) located at ...
	This item was deferred by the applicant to the December 7 public hearing.
	4. Hold public hearing and consider a recommendation to City Council on petition M-2021-51 by Nelson Property Group to rezone approximately 1.56 acres at 1670 & 1678 W Main Street, one unaddressed parcel, and adjacent right-of-way from Residential Dev...
	This item was deferred by the applicant to the December 7 public hearing.
	5. Hold public hearing and consider a recommendation to City Council on petition M-2021-52 by Affordable Auto Repair (Steven Gaskins) to rezone approximately 0.7 acres at 114 Wood Street and adjacent right-of-way from Limited Commercial (LC) to Indust...
	Shana Marshburn, Planner II, presented the staff report.
	Commissioner Smith asked if staff would support the special exception request to the Zoning Board of Appeals. Ms. Marshburn stated they probably would, depending upon what the required site plan looked like when submitted. She added it would also depe...
	The applicant, Steven Gaskins, 2919 Starnes Drive, stated he had been in the auto repair business for 28 years and was trying to offer affordable towing services as well.
	Mr. Mike Fanning, 7825 Camp Welfare Road, Great Falls, spoke in support of the request, noting that offering wrecker service was a logical extension of the existing use.
	Commissioner Mallard made the motion to recommend to City Council approval of the Industry General (IG) zoning as presented by staff. Commissioner Smith seconded, and the motion carried unanimously by a vote of 5-0 (Graham and Robinson absent).
	6. Hold public hearing and consider a recommendation to City Council on petition M-2021-53 by Clinton College to rezone approximately 3.48 acres at 1018 & 1052 ½ Crawford Road; 224, 226, 230, 232, 234, 236 & 238 Brice Street; and adjacent right-of-way...
	Shana Marshburn, Planner II, presented the staff report.
	Commissioner Smith asked if the parking lot expansion would require curb and gutter. Ms. Marshburn stated it would, adding that all additional parking would be required to meet the standards outlined in the City’s regulations.
	Commissioner Martens asked for confirmation that this action would make all of Clinton College zoned Office and Institutional. Ms. Marshburn stated this was correct.
	Commissioner Smith asked if the college owned any other properties adjacent outside of this request. Ms. Marshburn stated staff tried to make sure that all properties owned by the college were included but that the applicant could best answer.
	Dr. Lester McCorn, 4622 Noel Court, President, Clinton College, stated the college’s desire to maximize its current space and footprint for development.
	Commissioner Smith asked if the college owned other properties in the area. Dr. McCorn stated it did own several properties across Heckle Boulevard, adding that part of the master plan for the college was to include more residential housing along with...
	Vice-Chair Christopher observed the current building configuration presented connected Brice Street with Heckle Boulevard through parking areas. Dr. McCorn stated this was correct.
	Mr. Mike Fanning, 7825 Camp Welfare Road, Great Falls, spoke in support of the project, noting specifically that the south side of Rock Hill was currently in a time of growth and there was a great deal of energy for this project.
	Vice-Chair Christopher commented that the request was positive and that it would bring the zoning where it needed to be.
	Commissioner Martens made the motion to recommend to City Council approval of Office and Institutional (OI) zoning as presented by staff. Commissioner Shelly Goodner seconded, and the motion carried unanimously by a vote of 5-0 (Graham and Robinson ab...
	7. Hold public hearing and consider a recommendation to City Council on petition M-2021-54 by Tinsley Properties LLC to rezone approximately 0.9 acres at 951 Cel-River Road and adjacent right-of-way from Business Development District III (BD-III) in Y...
	Dennis Fields, Planner III, presented the staff report.
	Commissioner Smith asked the status of the two properties to the south of this one. Mr. Fields stated these were owned by York County as part of a road construction project and would potentially be sold to new or adjacent property owners. He noted tha...
	Commissioner Mallard presented the motion to recommend to City Council approval of Community Commercial (CC) zoning as presented by staff. Commissioner Smith seconded, and the motion carried unanimously by a vote of 5-0 (Graham and Robinson absent).
	NEW BUSINESS
	8. Consideration of a request by McCraney Property Company for a Major Site Plan and Preliminary Plat approval for an industrial building located on Fire Tower Road. (Plan #20210279)
	Dennis Fields, Planner III, presented the staff report.
	Commissioner Smith asked the size of the West Marine building, adding he just wanted to know for scale of the proposed building. Planning & Zoning Manager, Eric Hawkins, stated it was approximately 470,000 square feet.
	Vice-Chair Christopher asked if wetland mitigation efforts would be put into place. Mr. Fields stated they would, that some of the wetlands were relocated to another area. He added there were other review comments along this vein that would need to be...
	Vice-Chair Christopher asked if these efforts had been taken care of already. The Applicant, Anthoney Parker with McCraney, stated they were currently working on these.
	Commissioner Smith asked if this would be a spec building. Mr. Parker replied that it was.
	Vice-Chair Christopher asked if the building could house multiple users. Mr. Parker  replied it could.
	Commissioner Smith made the motion to approve the Major Site Plan and Preliminary Plat as presented, subject to staff comments. Commissioner Goodner seconded, and the motion carried unanimously by a vote of 5-0 (Graham and Robinson absent).
	9. Consideration of a recommendation to City Council to amend the City’s 2030 Comprehensive Plan to add a Resiliency element.
	Amy Jo Denton, Senior Planner, presented the staff report.
	Vice-Chair Christopher asked if this element would help the City handle any type of disaster. Ms. Denton replied that it would put plans in place to ensure communication between organizations.
	Commissioner Mallard asked if this was tying preparedness into the comp plan. Ms. Denton stated it was.
	Commissioner Mallard commented on the 2014 flood in Columbia, SC, asking if this had any bearing on why the act was developed. Ms. Denton stated the General Assembly adopted this act was result of the impact of the 2018 hurricane season.
	Commissioner Mallard presented the motion to recommend to City Council the amendments to the City’s 2030 Comprehensive Plan with respect to the Resiliency element as presented by staff. Commissioner Goodner seconded, and the motion carried unanimously...
	10. Other Business.
	a. Adopt 2022 Calendar.
	After discussion by the Commissioners, the calendar was adopted with the following date changes:
	 November 8 raindate changed to November 10 to not coincide with election day
	 July 4 meeting moved to July 12 with July 14 as the raindate
	Commissioner Smith made a motion to adopt the calendar as submitted with the changes noted. Commissioner Martens seconded, and the motion carried unanimously by a vote of 5-0 (Graham and Robinson absent).
	b. Holiday dinner.
	After discussion by the Commissioners on having an in-person dinner event, it was decided that staff would research restaurants and send out a poll as to best dates for everyone.
	c. Speaker address requirements.
	Commissioner Smith asked why addresses were required for the minutes. Mr. Fields stated he would find out the reasoning for this.
	d. Moratorium.
	Vice-Chair Christopher asked for more information on the moratorium voted on by City Council at the previous night’s meeting. Mr. Fields provided information on the reasoning behind the decision as well as the process going forward.
	e. Mrs. Janice Miller leaving.
	Mr. Hawkins informed the Commission that Mrs. Miller would be moving to another department and that this was her last meeting with the Commission.
	11.  Adjourn.
	There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:52 p.m.

